

Registration of a Charge

Company Name: CENTRE FOR ENGINEERING AND MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE LTD

Company Number: 04238862

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 26/08/2021



Details of Charge

Date of creation: 20/08/2021

Charge code: **0423 8862 0006**

Persons entitled: CLOSE LEASING LIMITED

Brief description: NA

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains negative pledge.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED

AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A

CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: FREENA BHIKHA



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 4238862

Charge code: 0423 8862 0006

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 20th August 2021 and created by CENTRE FOR ENGINEERING AND MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE LTD was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 26th August 2021.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 27th August 2021

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006







Dated 20/08/2021

CLOSE LEASING LIMITED

AND

CENTRE FOR ENGINEERING AND MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE LIMITED

CHATTEL MORTGAGE (CUSTOMER)



Contents

	Clause	Page
1	Definitions and interpretation	1
2	Covenant to pay	
3	Charging clause	
4	Representations	3
5	Covenants	
6	Indemnity	
7	Power to remedy	7
8	Appointment of receiver	8
9	Lender authorised to execute documents	9
10	Other charges	9
11	Notices	9
12	Notice by Company to discharge the security	10
13	Continuing security	
14	Company's account may be closed on notice of second charge	10
15	Retention of security	11
16	Assignment	11
17	Severance	11
18	Amendments etc	11
19	Certificates etc	11
20	Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999	11
21	Performance	12
22	Counterparts	12
23	English law	12
	The Schedule	
	The Assets	13



This Mortgage is made on 20/08/202/

Between

- (1) Centre For Engineering And Manufacturing Excellence Ltd (No.04238862) whose registered office is at Ceme Campus, Marsh Way, Rainham, Essex RM13 8EU (Company); and
- (2) Close Leasing Limited (No. 06377532) whose office is at Olympic Court, Third Avenue, Trafford Park Village, Manchester M17 1AP (Lender).

Whereas the Company is the owner of the Assets and has agreed to assign them with full title guarantee by way of legal mortgage to the Lender.

It is agreed

- 1 Definitions and interpretation
- 1.1 Definitions

In this Mortgage:

Assets means the plant, machinery, goods, chattels or other equipment (whether already acquired or to be acquired) specified in the schedule (including all engines, appliances, parts, spare parts, instruments, appurtenances, accessories and other equipment of any kind installed on, or in, such goods or chattels) and any and all substitutions, alterations, replacements, renewals and additions made for or, in or to the same or any part of the same after the Execution Date and, where the context so permits, any part or parts of them

Default Interest means the interest payable at the rates and at the times specified in clause 2(d) (Covenant to pay)

Cost of Funds means the cost to the Lender (or any member of the Lender's Group of Companies) of borrowing to enable it to fund the transaction with the Company

Encumbrance means any mortgage, charge (fixed or floating), debenture, hypothecation, assignment by way of security, pledge, lien or any other arrangement or agreement which has the effect of creating security or payment priority

Execution Date means the date this Mortgage is executed by the Company

Group of Companies means any companies which are members of the same group of companies for the purposes of the provisions for group relief contained in Part 5 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

Intellectual Property Rights means

(a) any patents, trade marks, service marks, designs, business names, copyrights, database rights, design rights, topography rights, domain names, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, knowhow and any other associated or similar intellectual property rights and interests anywhere in the world (which may now or in the future subsist), and in each case whether registered or unregistered and



(b) the benefit of all applications, rights to apply for and rights to use such assets (including, without limitation, any licences and sub-licences of the same granted by it or to it) of the Company (which may now or in the future subsist)

LPA 1925 means the Law of Property Act 1925

Markings means labels, plates or markings

Security Period means the period beginning on the Execution Date and ending on the date when all sums due to the Lender have been irrevocably and unconditionally repaid in full and the Company has ceased to be under any further, actual or contingent, liability to the Lender under or in connection with this Mortgage

Receiver means any one or more receivers managers or administrative receivers appointed pursuant to this Mortgage in respect of the Company or over all or any of the Assets and an administrative receiver shall have (in addition to the powers in clause 9 (Appointment of receiver)) all the powers conferred upon him by Schedule 1 of the Insolvency Act 1986

Value Added Tax means value added tax as provided for in any relevant legislation (including any primary or subordinate legislation of the European Union or any official body or agency thereof) and any tax similar or equivalent to value added tax or any sales or turnover tax and any similar tax replacing or introduced in addition to any of the same

1.2 Interpretation

In this Mortgage:

- (a) words denoting the plural number include the singular and vice versa;
- references to clauses and the schedule are references to clauses of and the schedule to, this Mortgage;
- (c) references to this Mortgage include the recitals and the schedule;
- (d) the headings and contents pages are for the purpose of reference only, have no legal or other significance, and shall be ignored in the interpretation of this Mortgage;
- (e) references to any document are, unless the context otherwise requires, references to that document as amended, supplemented, novated or replaced from time to time;
- (f) references to statutes or provisions of statues are references to those statutes, or those provisions, as from time to time amended, replaced or re-enacted;
- (g) references to the Lender include its successors, transferees and assignees; and

2

(h) references to a person shall include an individual, company, partnership, joint venture, association, organisation or trust (in each case, whether or not having separate legal personality).

2 Covenant to pay

The Company covenants with the Lender on demand:



- to pay to the Lender the balance from time to time unpaid of all monies now due or after the Execution Date to become due to the Lender and/or any member of the Lender's Group of Companies by the Company;
- (b) to discharge all liabilities now owing or after the Execution Date to become owing to the Lender and/or any member of the Lender's Group of Companies by the Company, either actual and/or contingent;
- (c) to pay all commissions, costs, expenses and charges incurred by the Lender in connection with this Mortgage and in claiming or seeking to enforce payment under this Mortgage; and
- (d) to pay interest on such monies both before and after such demand is made or judgment obtained. Interest shall be calculated on a daily basis and compounded monthly at a rate of 4% per annum above the Lender's Cost of Funds for monies owing to the Lender by the Company or the Borrower, from when due to payment,

in each case whether the same monies or liabilities shall be due or owing alone or jointly with any other person, or by any firm in which the Company may be a partner, on overdraft or otherwise and whether as principal or surety.

3 Charging clause

- 3.1 The Company charges and assigns absolutely and unconditionally to the Lender with full title guarantee, by way of a specific first charge, all of its right, title and interest in and to the Assets, together with the benefit of:
 - (a) any and all obligations, guarantees and warranties given by any manufacturer or supplier of the Assets;
 - (b) any and all obligations, guarantees and warranties given by any other party in respect of the Assets to or in favour of the Company; and
 - (c) the benefit of all maintenance agreements and all Intellectual Property Rights relating to the Assets entered into between the Company and any such third party.
- 3.2 Following the expiry of the Security Period the Lender shall, upon the request and at the cost and expense of the Company, reassign the Assets to the Company, to the extent then still subsisting and capable of reassignment.

4 Representations

The Company represents and warrants to the Lender:

- that it is the absolute legal and beneficial owner of the Assets free from any Encumbrance, (except for any liens arising by operation of law, in the ordinary course of the Company's business);
- (b) that this Mortgage does not contravene any of the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and has been duly authorised and executed;
- (c) that it is a limited liability corporation, duly incorporated and validly existing under the law of its jurisdiction of incorporation;

3

10-3660983-6/328359-New



- it has the power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted;and
- (e) that it has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, performance and delivery of, this Mortgage and the transactions contemplated by this Mortgage.

5 Covenants

The Company covenants with the Lender that, throughout the Security Period, it will:

5.1 Further assurance

Promptly upon demand by the Lender execute such legal or other mortgages, charges, assignments or securities as the Lender shall require (upon terms and conditions acceptable to the Lender, at the expense of the Company) of and on all the Company's estate and interest in the Assets (including any vendor's lien) to secure all monies and liabilities agreed to be paid or intended to be secured under this Mortgage.

5.2 Documents of title

Subject to the rights of any prior mortgagee, deposit with the Lender all invoices, documents of title, guarantees, insurance policies, maintenance agreements and ancillary documents relating to the Assets.

5.3 Payment

Punctually pay:

- the rent, rates, assessments, charges, impositions, outgoings and taxes in respect of all premises of the Company; and
- (b) all licence fees, duties, registration charges and all outgoings in respect of the Assets and keep or cause the Assets to be kept from being distrained for recovery or from being taken under any execution and shall at all times on demand produce or cause to be produced to the Lender or its authorised agents the receipt for such payments and in default it shall be lawful (but not obligatory) for the Lender to pay and discharge such sums which at any time may be or become due, assessed or payable in respect of the premises or the Assets and the Company shall repay the same to the Lender on demand, together with Default Interest.

5.4 Possession

Keep the Assets permanently in its sole and exclusive possession at the location specified in the schedule or at such other premises as the Lender shall authorise in writing and shall not in any event take the Assets out of England and Wales.

5.5 Identification

Affix to or engrave upon the Assets such Markings as the Lender shall require and not allow such Markings to be concealed, altered or removed.



5.6 Order and permissions

Produce promptly to the Lender the original of any order, direction, requisition, permission, notice, proceedings, or matter whatsoever affecting or likely to affect the Assets and/or any premises of the Company, served upon the Company by any third party, together with full particulars of such notice. The Company shall promptly, at the its own cost, comply with the same and shall, if so required by the Lender, at the Company's own cost, make or join in making such objections or representations against or in respect of the contents of any such notice as the Lender may deem expedient or desirable.

5.7 Power of entry

Permit the Lender or any person nominated by it to enter on any premises of the Company (a) to inspect the Assets, including any Markings (b) to effect such repairs as the Lender shall consider necessary or desirable and (c) generally to do all such acts as the Lender considers necessary or desirable, in connection with this Mortgage.

5.8 Repair

Keep the Assets in good and substantial repair and condition and in working order and will replace any parts of the Assets as may be destroyed, damaged or worn out with new parts of at least similar quality and of at least equal value. The Company shall carry out such repairs to or replacement of the Assets as the Lender shall consider necessary or desirable. If the Company fails to carry out such repair, the Lender may, but shall not be obliged, to do so (at the expense of the Company).

5.9 Value Added Tax

The Company covenants to pay to the Lender on demand the amount of any Value Added Tax which may be payable in respect of any sums payable by the Company to the Lender under or secured by this Mortgage or pursuant to the exercise by the Lender of any of its rights under this Mortgage and the Company shall pay to the Lender on demand an amount equal to any Value Added Tax or other sums payable or incurred by the Lender under or pursuant to the Value Added Tax Act 1994 or any regulations made thereunder or otherwise in consequence of its having entered into this Mortgage or any transaction secured by this Mortgage or exercising any of its rights under this Mortgage. The Company shall indemnify the Lender against any liability in respect of Value Added Tax.

5.10 Yield up

At any time after the Lender shall have demanded payment of any monies secured by this Mortgage or if the Company defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Mortgage allow the Lender, without further notice or further demand, immediately to put into force and exercise all rights, powers and remedies possessed by it and in particular (but without limitation) to take possession of the Assets and for that purpose to enter upon any land or buildings where the Assets are or are reasonably thought to be situated without being liable to the Company for or by reason of such entry.

5.11 Insurance

To insure and keep insured the Assets with such insurer and against such risks (including, without limitation, liability to third parties, loss or damage to property and statutory liability), in such amounts and otherwise upon such terms as the Lender may require. The Company will

10-3660983-6/328359-New 5



punctually pay all premiums and other monies necessary for the purpose of such insurance immediately on the same becoming due and will deliver to the Lender the receipt after every such payment. The Company will procure that the interest of the Lender is noted upon all insurance policies or (if the Lender so requires) that the policy is held in the joint names of the Company and the Lender. The Company will apply all monies which may be received by virtue of any such policy either in making good the loss or damage in respect of which the monies may have been received or (if so required by notice given by the Lender not later than 7 days after notice to the Lender of the receipt of such monies and without prejudice to any obligation in the policy of insurance or to any other obligation having priority to the obligation imposed by this Mortgage) in discharge or reduction of the monies secured by this Mortgage. If the Company shall at any time default in keeping up such insurance or delivering any policy or receipt to the Lender in accordance with clause 5.2 the Lender shall be entitled to exercise the powers of insurance against fire conferred by statute on mortgagees and to effect such insurance as the Lender shall consider necessary or desirable and every sum expended by the Lender in so doing shall be deemed to be properly paid by the Lender and, together with Default Interest thereon, shall be repaid by the Company to the Lender on demand.

5.12 Use

Not use or permit the Assets to be used for any purpose for which they are not designed or reasonably suited.

5.13 Alterations

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent, make or suffer to be made any alteration or addition of a substantial nature in or to the Assets other than for the purpose of effecting repairs in accordance with clause 5.8.

5.14 Disposal

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent sell, attempt to sell, assign, charge, hire, lease, part with, share possession, dispose of, permit or suffer any distress or execution to be levied upon the Assets.

5.15 Statutory requirements

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent, use nor permit the Assets to be used in any way contrary to law and shall comply with the requirements of any law so far as the same relates to or affects the Assets or their user and shall promptly execute or cause to be executed all works that are required by law to be executed upon or in connection with the Assets.

5.16 Value

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent, in any manner or by any means cause the value of the Assets to lessen or suffer them to be lessened, fair wear and tear excepted.

5.17 Further encumbrance

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent, create or permit to subsist or arise any further Encumbrance (other than a lien arising by operation of law in the ordinary course of the Company's business) ranking in priority to or pari passu with this Mortgage upon the Assets or on the interest of the Company in the Assets.



5.18 Annexure

Not, without the Lender's prior written consent, annex the Assets to any premises of the Company if the result of such annexure is that the Assets would or might become a fixture or fixtures.

6 Indemnity

- 6.1 The Company shall promptly indemnify the Lender and every Receiver against any cost, loss or liability together with any associated Value Added Tax incurred by any of them as a result of:
 - (a) the taking, holding, protection or enforcement of this Mortgage;
 - (b) the exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Lender and each Receiver by this Mortgage or by law; and
 - (c) any default by the Company in the performance of any of the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Mortgage.
- The Company shall indemnify the Lender against any and all costs, losses, liabilities or expenses together with any associated Value Added Tax incurred by the Lender arising (directly or indirectly) out of or in connection with:
 - (a) the design, manufacture, possession, use, operation, redelivery or removal of the Assets, including those based on infringement of any patent or other intellectual property rights; or
 - (b) any responsibility on the part of the Lender in respect of any clean-up, repair or other corrective action.
- 6.3 The Lender may indemnify itself out in respect of, and pay and retain, all sums necessary to give effect to the indemnity in this clause and shall have a lien on this Mortgage and the proceeds of the enforcement of this Mortgage for all monies payable to it.

7 Power to remedy

- 7.1 If the Company fails to comply with any of the undertakings set out in clause 5, it shall allow and irrevocably authorises the Lender and/or such persons as it shall nominate to take such action on behalf of the Company as shall be necessary to ensure that it complies with those undertakings.
- 7.2 If the Company fails to perform any obligation or other covenant affecting the Assets, it shall permit the Lender or its agents and contractors:
 - (a) to enter on the Company's premises;
 - to comply with or object to any notice served on the Company relating to the Assets;
 and
 - (c) to take any action the Lender may consider expedient to prevent or remedy any breach of any such term or to comply with or object to any such notice.



7.3 The Company shall within 3 Business Days of demand indemnify the Lender against any cost, loss or liability incurred by it in taking any of the steps referred to in this clause 7.

8 Appointment of receiver

- At any time after the Lender shall have demanded payment or discharge of any monies or liabilities or other sums secured by this Mortgage the Lender may appoint any person to be a Receiver of the Assets and remove (subject, in the case of an administrative receiver, to the sanction of the Court) any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his place and a Receiver so appointed shall have power in the name of or on behalf and at the cost of the Company or at his option (but only with the prior written consent of the Lender) in the name of the Lender or at his option in his own name (and in any case notwithstanding the liquidation of the Company) to do or omit to do anything which the Company could do or omit to do in relation to the Assets and in particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any such Receiver shall have power:
 - (a) to take possession of or collect and get in the Assets and for that purpose to take any proceedings in the name of the Company or otherwise as may seem expedient and for that purpose to enter upon any premises of the Company and sever, dismantle and remove the Assets, without being liable for any loss or damage thereby occasioned (other than through negligence);
 - (b) to raise or borrow any monies that may be required upon the security of the Assets;
 - (c) forthwith and without the restriction imposed by either section 103 or section 93 LPA 1925 to sell, convert into money and realise all or any part of Assets by public auction or private contract and generally in such manner and on such terms and conditions as he shall think proper;
 - (d) to make any arrangements or compromise which he shall think expedient;
 - to make and effect all repairs, renewals and any improvements of the Assets as he may determine;
 - (f) and to maintain or renew all insurances;
 - (g) to appoint managers, agents, officers, and workpeople for any of these purposes at such salaries and for such periods as he may determine;
 - (h) to lease, let on hire purchase, store, alter or improve all or any part of the Assets for such term and at such rent and on such other terms as he may think proper and accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy thereof;
 - to give valid receipts for all moneys and execute all assurances and things which may be proper or desirable for realising the Assets;
 - to use the name of the Company for all or any of the purposes and in any legal proceedings with full power to convey any property sold in the name of the Company;
 and
 - (k) to do all such other acts and things as may be considered to be incidental or conducive to any of these matters or powers and which he lawfully may or can do as agent for the Company.



- 8.2 A Receiver or Receivers so appointed shall be entitled to charge such amount for his remuneration as shall be agreed between such Receiver and the Lender.
- 8.3 All monies received by such Receiver shall be applied;
 - (a) first in payment of his remuneration and the costs of realisation;
 - (b) secondly in providing for the matters specified in the first three paragraphs of section 8 or section 109 LPA 1925 and for the purposes aforesaid; and
 - (c) thirdly in or towards satisfaction of the monies secured by this Mortgage and all the foregoing provisions shall take effect as and by way of variation and extensions of the provisions of sections 99 to 109 inclusive LPA 1925 which provisions so varied and extended shall be regarded as incorporated in this Mortgage.

Any Receiver so appointed shall be deemed to be the agent of the Company and the Company shall be solely responsible for his acts or defaults and remuneration.

9 Lender authorised to execute documents

The Company, by way of security, irrevocably and severally appoints the Lender, each Receiver and any of their delegates or sub-delegates to be its attorney to take any action which the Company is obliged to take under this Mortgage. The Company ratifies and confirms whatever any attorney does or purports to do pursuant to its appointment under this clause 9.

10 Other charges

Subject to clause 5.17 (Further encumbrance), if the Company creates a mortgage or charge (whether specific or floating) in relation to the Assets or any mortgage or charge (whether legal or equitable) on any premises of the Company, the Company shall promptly notify the Lender of the same and if requested so by the Lender shall procure from any mortgagee, chargee or debenture holder or other person having an interest (whether legal or equitable) in the Assets or any premises of the Company a waiver in such form as the Lender may require of all rights which the holder of such interest might otherwise be entitled to claim in the Assets.

11 Notices

- 11.1 Any notice or demand by the Lender shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or made if sent by hand or prepaid letter post to the registered office of the Company or the address of the Company last known to the Lender.
- Any notice by the Company shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or made if sent by hand or prepaid letter to the office of the Lender as detailed in this Mortgage above.
- 11.3 Any such notice or demand shall be deemed to have been served on the:
 - (a) at the time of delivery if sent by hand;
 - (b) at the earlier of the time of delivery or 10.00 am on the day after posting (or, if the day after posting be a Sunday or any other day upon which no delivery of letters is scheduled to be made, at 10.00 am on the next succeeding day on which delivery of letters is scheduled to be made) if sent by prepaid letter post.



11.4 Each communication to be made under this Mortgage shall be made in writing.

12 Notice by Company to discharge the security

The Company may at any time give to the Lender 7 days' notice in writing of its intention to discharge this Mortgage and immediately upon expiration of such notice all monies secured by this Mortgage shall become payable.

13 Continuing security

This Mortgage shall be a continuing security and shall extend to cover the ultimate balance due from the Company to the Lender notwithstanding there may have been from time to time or at any time a balance to the credit of the Company on any account between the Company and the Lender or any other matter or thing whatsoever and shall be in addition to and without prejudice to any other securities or remedies now or at any time held by the Lender including (without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) any charge, deposit, guarantee, indemnity, lien, set off or any other form of security whatsoever and no assurance, security or payment which may be avoided under any enactments relating to liquidation and no release settlement or discharge which may have been given or made on the faith of any such assurance, security or payment shall prejudice or affect the rights of the Lender against the Company under this Mortgage.

14 Company's account may be closed on notice of second charge

- 14.1 If the Lender shall receive notice actual or constructive:
 - that the Company has, whether with or without the consent of the Lender, encumbered or (other than in the ordinary course of trading) disposed of any interest in the Assets; or
 - (b) of any other matter being inconsistent with the provisions of this Mortgage and affecting the property and Assets,

the Lender shall be entitled to close any account of the Company and to open a new account in its name and if the Lender does not close such account and open such new account it shall nevertheless be deemed to have done so and all monies paid to the credit of such closed account shall be placed or deemed to have been placed to the credit of such new account so opened or deemed to have been opened and no such monies shall be appropriated towards or have the effect of discharging any part of the amount due to the Lender on such account so closed but this provision shall not prejudice any security which apart from this provision the Lender would have had for the discharge by the Company of monies borrowed and liabilities incurred after that time.

14.2 The Lender shall have, in addition to any general lien or similar right to which it may be entitled by law, the right at any time and from time to time, either with or without notice to the Company, (before and after any demand under this Mortgage or otherwise) to combine or consolidate all or any of the Company's then existing accounts with, and liabilities to, the Lender and/or to set off or transfer any sum standing to the credit of any one or more of such accounts in or towards satisfaction of any of the liabilities of the Company to the Lender on any other account or in any other respect, whether such liabilities be actual, contingent, primary, collateral, several or joint.



15 Retention of security

The Lender shall be entitled to retain this security (including any documents relating to this Mortgage or deposited or held under this Mortgage) for a period of 25 months after the expiry of the Security Period notwithstanding any release, settlement, discharge or arrangement given or made by the Lender provided that if at any time within the period of 2 years after the expiry of the Security Period:

- (a) an administration order shall be made in relation to the Company; or
- (b) a petition shall be presented to a competent Court for an order for the winding up of the Company; or
- (c) the Company shall commence to be wound up voluntarily,

the Lender shall be at liberty to continue to retain such security or any part (including any documents aforesaid) for and during such further period as the Lender in its absolute discretion may determine in which event such security shall be deemed to have continued at all times to have been held by the Lender as security for the payment and discharge to the Lender of all or any monies and liabilities and other sums secured by this Mortgage or which shall or may become due and owing to the Lender either by virtue of the provisions hereof or as a consequence of any order made under or by virtue of sections 238 to 243 (inclusive) Insolvency Act 1986.

16 Assignment

The Lender may assign, transfer, hold on trust or otherwise deal with all or any part of its rights and/or obligations under this Mortgage.

17 Severance

Each of the provisions contained in this Mortgage shall be severable and distinct from one another and if at any time any one or more of such provisions is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable under the laws of any jurisdiction, the validity, legality and enforceability of each of the remaining provisions of this Mortgage under the laws of any jurisdiction shall not in any way be affected, prejudiced or impaired thereby.

18 Amendments etc

This Mortgage shall not be deemed or construed to be modified, amended, rescinded, cancelled or waived in whole or in part except by the written agreement of the parties hereto.

19 Certificates etc

A certificate, determination, notification or opinion of the Lender as to any amount payable under this Mortgage will be prima facie evidence thereof except in the case of manifest error.

20 Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

The parties to this Mortgage do not intend that any of its terms will be enforceable by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) 1999 by any persons not a party to it. This clause does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available otherwise than pursuant to that Act.



21 Performance

The Company shall remain liable to perform all the obligations assumed by it in relation to the Assets. The Lender shall be under no obligation of any kind in respect thereof nor under any liability in the event of any failure by the Company to perform, or breach by the Company of, any of those obligations.

22 Counterparts

This Mortgage may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same document and either party may enter into this Mortgage by executing a counterpart.

23 English law

- 23.1 This Mortgage shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law and all claims and disputes (including any contractual claims and disputes) arising out of or in connection with this Mortgage, its subject matter, negotiation or formation will be determined in accordance with English law.
- 23.2 The parties hereto submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

Executed as a deed by the parties or their duly authorised representatives on the date of this Mortgage.



The Schedule

The Assets

Supplier	Invoice No	Description
United Facilities Management Ltd	020693	Skylight
United Facilities Management Ltd	020935	Skylight
United Facilities Management Ltd	021113	Skylight
Lincoln Electrical Contracts Limited	INV-0526	LED Lighting
		CIC Refurbishment including but not
Atrium Interior Projects Ltd	4259	limited to:
		18 x Partitions
		18 x Acoustic Barrier
		4 x Internal doors with
		visual panels
		2 x New Glazed partition with acoustic
		glass with manifestation 2m x 1m
		4 x Radiators
		1 x Fire Alarm
		1 x Over Head Projector
		LED Lighting
		Replace 1Burner and Associated
United Facilities Management Ltd	021014	Pipework
SSE Enterprise	SEP00457-2	Building Management System Upgrade
SSE Enterprise	152229	Building Management System Upgrade
Atrium LDN LLP	4262	Room 236/237 Ventilation System
Atrium LDN LLP	4263	Room 236/237 Ventilation System
***		Jelly Comb HD 1080P Webcam with
		Autofocus, Privacy Cover and Dual-Mic
		for PC Computer Laptop Xbox One, Web
Amazon	1153029535	Camera for Live
		Wireless Earbuds,Mpow M9 4-mic Noise
	44 dicharanterere	Cancelling CVC 8.0 True Wireless
		Bluetooth 5.0 Earphones in-Ear,Touch
Amazon	999061915	Control Stereo Bass Sport
		Logitech MK270 Wireless Keyboard and
		Mouse Combo for Windows, 2.4 GHz
		Wireless, Compact Wireless Mouse, 8
Amazon	2021-214905646	Multimedia & Shortcut Keys,



Executed as a deed by SARAH COUNCY	(attorney's signature)
as attorney for and on behalf of Close Leasing Limited under a power of attorney dated 27 07 2021	
in the presence of	
Signature of witness	HANNAM PERRIN
Name Address	HPM 58 Wallwoote Road Weavenan, CWB 3LY
Executed as a deed by Centre For Engineering And Manufacturing Excellence Ltd acting by a director in the presence of	Director
Signature of witness	
Name CHRIS ROLLS	
Address 13 PIME DRIVE	
WOKINGHAM BERKS RG403LD	